






This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda4 of 75



University of Waterloo 

SENATE 

Minutes of the Monday 27 March 2023 Meeting 

[in agenda order] 

 

Present: John Abraham, Sheila Ager, Marc Aucoin, Lisa Aultman-Hall, Sandra Banks, Michael 

Beauchemin, Jeff Casello, Trevor Charles, Joan Coutu, Laura Deakin, Charmaine Dean, David DeVidi,  

Nenone Donaldson, Catherine Dong, Aiman Fatima, Wendy Fletcher, Cindy Forbes, Mark Giesbrecht, 

Vivek Goel (chair), Rob Gorbet, David Ha, Mary Hardy, Nadine Ibrahim, Narveen Jandu, Martin Karsten, 

Andrea Kelman (secretary), Achim Kempf, Jennifer Kieffer, Veronica Kitchen, Alysia Kolentsis, Christiane 

Lemieux, Robert Lemieux, Lili Liu, Brad Lushman, Jennifer Lynes Murray, Ellen MacEachen, Carol Ann 

MacGregor, Blake Madill, Peter Meehan, Kristiina Montero, Richard Myers, Graham Murphy, Beth 

Namachchivaya, Cathy Newell Kelly, Erin O’Connell, Daniel O’Connor, Troy Osborne, Nicholas Pfeifle, 

Luke Potwarka, Jacinda Reitsma, Cynthia Richard, James Rush, Marcus Shantz, Siva Sivoththaman, James 

Skidmore, Sharon Tucker, Graeme Turner, Diana Vangelisti, Paul Ward, Dan Weber, Stan Woo, Clarence 

Woudsma, Changbao Wu, Stephanie Ye-Mowe 

 

Guests: Jean Becker, Melissa Benjamin, Aldo Caputo, Bernard Duncker, Donna Ellis, Anne Galang, Lori 

Gamble, Diana Goncalves, Jenny Flagler-George, Sarah Hadley, Michele Hollis, Ross Johnston, Manning, 

Ian Milligan, Bessma Momani, Anton Mosunov, Fayaz Noormohamed, Ian Rowlands, Daniela Seskar-

Hencic, Brandon Sweet, Allan Starr, Tim Weber-Kraljevski, Sarah Willey-Thomas, Katy Wong-Francq 

 

Absent: Dominic Barton*, Neil Craik, Kim Cuddington, Kristine Dalton, Jack DeGooyer*, Bruce 

Frayne*, Onurcan Gokkaya, Kelly Grindrod, Kevin Hare, Natalie Hutchings, Sonia Ismail, Scott Kline*, 

Xianguo Li, Ceileigh McAllister, Nasser Mohieddin Abukhdeir*, Chris Nielsen*, Oudy Noweir, Mary 

Robinson*, Naima Samuel*, Matthew Schwarze, Siv Sivaloganathan, Julian Surdi, Mary Wells*, Annie 

Yang*, En-Hui Yang* 

*regrets 

 

OPEN SESSION 

 

CHAIR’S REMARKS 

The chair observed that a Sunrise Ceremony, followed by the Eagle Staff Ceremony occurred earlier that 

day. The Eagle Staff, which reflects the wisdom, strength, and honour of those that carry it in 

representation of Nations across Turtle Island, was presented by Indigenous Knowledge Keeper, Elder 

Myeengun Henry. Through the introduction of the Eagle Staff, the University of Waterloo honours the 

responsibility to take on Indigenous perspectives, ensuring that they are reflected in the governance, 

structure, and intent of the University. Honouring and incorporating the Eagle Staff into our institution, 

including in governance proceedings and institutional ceremonies like convocation, reflects the intention 

underpinning the commitment made by the University on Indigeneity and supporting reconciliation made 

last September. 

 

The chair thanked Senators on the committees and councils that participated in the review of committee 

terms of reference over the last cycle of meetings. The chair noted that in mid-April all Senators will 

receive an opportunity to participate in a Senate Effectiveness survey, designed to gather feedback on the 

strengths of Senate as well as identifying specific areas where improvement can be made. Committee 

effectiveness will not be surveyed this year as committees just went through the exercise of reviewing 

their terms of reference but will be included in future cycles. The chair also thanked Senators who 

attended the Strategic Plan Thematic Discussion the previous week jointly with the Board of Governors. 

 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 Senators were asked to declare any conflicts they may have in relation to the items on the agenda. No 

conflicts were declared. 

 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

A motion was heard to approve the agenda as distributed. Casello and Skidmore. Carried. 

 
Return to Agenda5 of 75



Senate   

27 March 2023  page 2 

 
3. MINUTES OF THE 27 FEBRUARY 2023 MEETING 

 A motion was heard to approve the minutes as distributed. Kempf and Lynes Murray. Carried with 

one abstention. 

 

4. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

There was no business arising from the minutes. 

 

5. SENATE WORKPLAN 

This item was received for information. 

 

6. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 

a. President’s Update 

Goel provided his report: 

• Waterloo has celebrated several significant events including Black History Month, Ramadan, 

International Women’s Day, and SDG Week. 

• March Open House occurred on March 15 and saw over 9000 visitors to campus. Goel 

thanked the volunteers who ensured it was a successful event.  

• The University of Waterloo was awarded nearly $10 million in federal funding on February 

28 to support ground-breaking research by the Waterloo Institute for Sustainable Aeronautics 

(WISA). 

• On March 23, 2023, the Government of Ontario tabled the proposed 2023 Budget. There was 

nothing announced of particular significance for the post-secondary education sector. The 

Federal Budget is scheduled to be released on March 28, 2023. 

• The Vice-President, Research & International continues to engage with the research security 

file.  A memo will be going out to the University community.  

• The Ontario government is creating a Blue-Ribbon panel of experts to investigate the 

financial sustainability of the postsecondary sector and will include Board of Governors 

Chair, Cindy Forbes as a member.  

 

7. REPORT FROM COMMITTEES AND COUNCILS 

a. Senate Graduate and Research Council 

i. A motion was heard to approve a new course-based Master of Future Cities (MFC) offered by 

the Faculty of Environment, effective 1 September 2023, as presented. Casello and 

MacEachen. Carried.  

 

ii. A motion was heard to approve adding a direct entry Co-operative program/option to the 

MEng in Chemical Engineering, effective 1 May 2023, as presented. Casello and 

Sivoththaman. Carried with two abstentions.  

 

iii. A motion was heard to approve updating the MEng in Chemical Engineering degree 

requirements to include one new Graduate Specialization in Entrepreneurship, effective 1 

May 2023, as presented. Casello and Aucoin. Carried with one opposed. 

 

iv. A motion was heard to approve updating the MKin degree requirements to include two new 

Graduate Specializations in Human Factors and Ergonomics (HFE) and Movement and 

Exercise Sciences (MES), effective 1 May 2023, as presented. Casello and Liu. Carried with 

one abstention. 

 

b. Senate Long Range Planning Committee 

i. A motion was heard that Senate recommends to the University of Waterloo’s Board of 

Governors endorse the draft vision document, Waterloo at 100, dated March 17, 2023, as 

presented herein.  

 

Return to Agenda6 of 75



Senate   

27 March 2023  page 3 

 
Rush and Gorbet.  

 

Rush introduced the item and Goel provided a presentation: 

• Waterloo at 100 builds on the University’s current strategic plan, past institutional 

assessments and reports, and consultations to provides a long-term vision for the 

institution by its 100th anniversary in 2057. 

• The vision paper: 

▪ Outlines five global futures as the areas of impact the university aspires and their 

intersections is where Waterloo has the greatest opportunity; 

▪ Makes forecasts for culture, graduates, knowledge, and the campus;  

▪ Waterloo’s differentiators of co-op and work integrated learning, connected 

fundamental and applied research, innovation and entrepreneurship, and 

community and campus connections will need to continue to evolve; and  

▪ Waterloo will face things that currently cannot be imagined so it is important to 

train our students to be the leaders of tomorrow and to create opportunities and 

conditions for innovation by all members of the community.  

• Immediate next steps in advancing the vision are evolving our values, aligning our 

mission to the Global Futures, establishing a pillar for social and policy engagement, 

launching an incubator for ideas to advance Waterloo at 100, and enhancing our planning 

and performance in support of the vision.   

 

Members discussed: the balance between fundamental and applied research; the inability to 

predict all future scenarios and the importance of being prepared to make decisions in real-

time; differentiating Waterloo’s vision document from the visions of other institutions; 

balancing entrepreneurship and commercialization with social and policy engagement; 

changing student culture and rethinking metrics for assessing students; creating mechanisms 

to move forward on big ideas and creating space for those big ideas to grow and succeed; the 

importance of long-term planning and continuing to engage all members of the university 

community as planning processes evolve; and working to construct a budget model that is in 

the spirit of supporting academic objectives. Members also recommended minor revisions to 

the vision document to ensure it is both internally and externally looking, and that the value 

of curiosity is included. 

 

The motion carried with one opposed and one abstention. 

 

ii. Committee Discussion – Senate Governance Review. Received for information. 

 

c. Senate Finance Committee 

i. A motion was heard that Senate recommends that the Board of Governors approve the 2023-

24 Operating Budget, as presented.  

 

Ye-Mowe and Casello.  

 

Rush provided a presentation highlighting:  

• The operating budget’s overall considerations;  

• Challenges for 2023/2024 including increased salary costs, constrained tuition revenue, 

likely in-year upward pressure on salary, and government and geopolitical uncertainty, 

resulting in the increase in projected expenses exceeding the increase in projected 

income;  

• Approaches for mitigating budget challenges including budget reductions, continued 

expense management, position management, advocacy work on domestic tuition 

framework, the use of a one-time strategic reserves budget available from past 

underspending of budgets, and enrolment and tuition rate planning; 

Return to Agenda7 of 75



Senate   

27 March 2023  page 4 

 
• An update of 2022/23 income and expenses in the 2023/24 opening budget; and  

• An overview of the strategic investments for 2023/24 including supports for 

interdisciplinarity, people and community, and student support. 

 

Members discussed: student concerns with the out-of-province tuition fee increase; the 

mandate and membership of the provincial Blue Ribbon panel; the effects of increases in 

housing costs and an upcoming campus housing proposal; budget forecasting and exploring 

new and traditional sources of funding; and the use of money allocated for risk mitigation and 

it’s use in the event the full amount is not spent.  

 

The motion carried with three opposed and four abstentions. 

 

8. AMENDMENT TO POLICY 3 

Rush and Hardy spoke to this item. A motion was heard that Senate approve the amendments to 

Policy 3 – Sabbatical and Other Leaves for Faculty Members, as presented, and that Senate 

recommends the amendments to the Board of Governors for approval. Rush and Hardy. Carried with 

one abstention.  

 

9. PROPOSAL TO AMEND SENATE MEETING SCHEDULE, AND FORMATS ON SENATE 

MEETING 

Goel spoke to this item and a motion was heard that Senate gives first reading to the amendments to 

Senate Bylaw 1, and endorse the guidelines for the annual schedule of meetings, and approve the 

changes to the annual work plan, all as presented. Casello and DeVidi. 

 

Members discussed: meeting timing; and ensuring Senate is still able to conduct all required business 

with less meetings.  

 

The motion carried with one opposed one abstention. 

 

10. PROPOSAL TO AMEND EX-OFFICIO MEMBERSHIP OF SENATE FOR 

CONSIDERATIONS OF EQUITY, DIVERSITY, AND INCLUSION IN SENATE 

MEMBERSHIP 

Goel spoke to this item and a motion was heard that Senate gives first reading to the amendments to 

Senate Bylaw 4 as presented, with said amendments to effect:  

a. Removal of five (5) named ex-officio members, items (a)-(e) in the bylaw 

b. Addition of five ex-officio members drawn from the university administration, as 

designated by the president 

And that Senate endorse the “Note to Reader on Presidential ExOfficio Appointments”, to be 

included as a statement separate from Senate Bylaw 4.   

 

Casello and Beauchemin.  

 

Members discussed: the importance of the PART recommendation and supporting considerations for 

equity, diversity, and inclusion in the membership of Senate; concerns with university administration 

being too broad a term for the amendment; concerns with delegating authority to the President to 

designate the five ex-officio members; and the importance of Senate approving these ex-officio 

members.  

 

In light of the deliberations, it was recognized that further consideration of the proposal would be 

beneficial, and the motion was withdrawn. 

 

11. CALL FOR NOMINATIONS FOR HONRARY DEGREES 

Received for information. Goel noted that the call will be circulated to the university community later 

in the week and encouraged members to submit nominations.  
Return to Agenda8 of 75



Senate   

27 March 2023  page 5 

 
 

12. OTHER BUSINESS 

There was no other business. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A motion was heard to approve or receive for information the items on the consent agenda, listed as items 

13-16 of the Senate agenda. DeVidi and Casello. Carried with one abstention.  

 

13. REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES AND COUNCILS 

a. Senate Graduate & Research Council. Received for information. 

b. Senate Undergraduate Council. One item approved; remaining item received for 

information. 

i. That Senate approve the proposed academic regulation revision of the invalid 

combination of the Diploma of Sustainability with the Environment, Resources and 

Sustainability Honours and Joint degrees for the Faculty of Environment, effective 1 

September 2024, as presented. 

 

14. REPORT OF THE VICE-PRESIDENT, RESEARCH & INTERNATIONAL.  

Received for information. 

 

15. REPORT OF THE VICE-PRESIDENT, ACADEMIC & PROVOST.  

Received for information. 

 

16. REPORTS FROM THE FACULTIES.  

Received for information. 

 

 

With no further business in open session, Senate convened in confidential session. 

 

28 March 2023 

AK/twk/dg 

Andrea Kelman 

University Secretary (Acting) 

Secretary to Senate  

 

Return to Agenda9 of 75



This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda10 of 75







Office of the President 

Senate 1 

For Recommendation Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 
Contact Information: Office of the President 

Presenter: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 
Contact Info: Office of the President 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 6b. Reports of the President 
Strategic Plan Thematic Session – Communities 

Summary:  

This Report brings together briefings compiled on strategic initiatives that will be spotlighted through a 
panel of faculty, staff, and students at the April 17th meeting of Senate. The three briefings address the 
foundation the University is building and growing to ensure our campus goals for sustainability and 
carbon neutrality are achieved. This includes critical investments to ensure we are minimizing our 
environmental footprint, the role of integrated capital planning, a focus on infrastructural renewal that 
addresses deferred maintenance, and a multipronged approach to embedding sustainability in our mission. 

Documentation Provided: 

2020-2025 Strategic Plan Thematic Spotlights on Communities

Return to Agenda13 of 75



 

 
 

 
 
Report of the President  Senate Meeting 

 
 

University of Waterloo   April 17, 2023 
   
 
 

 
Table of Contents  

2020-2025 Strategic Plan Thematic Spotlights on Communities 2 

1. Sustainability and Facilites Leadership Priorities 3 

2. Sustainability Office 6 

3. Plant Operations 11 

 

 

Return to Agenda14 of 75



























For Information Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: 

Contact Information: 

James W. E. Rush, Vice-President, Academic & Provost 

provost@uwaterloo.ca 

Presenter: 

Contact Information: 

Gerry Schneider, Chair, UARC 

gerry.schneider@uwaterloo.ca  

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 7a. Report of the Provost: 

University Appointments Review Committee 

Summary: 

Annual UARC Report 

This report is provided under Policy 76 – Faculty Appointments. From September 2021 to August 2022, 

UARC reviewed a total of 135 proposals for regular faculty appointments. For comparison purposes, the 

total number of proposals reviewed in recent years was 58 (2009-10), 79 (2010-11), 87 (2011-12), 68 

(2012-13), 70 (2013-14), 85 (2014-15), 69 (2015-16), 90 (2016-17), 102 (2017-18), 87 (2018-19), 50 

(2019-20) and 66 (2020-21).  

(The following numbers in brackets in this report are from 2020-21.) Of the files reviewed 63 (27) 

females, 68 (39) males, 4 of unknown gender (0)), 17 (10) were tenured, 93 (34) were for probationary, 

and 25 (22) were for definite-term appointments.   

Per rank, the percentage of females hired were: assistant research professor 0% (0%), lecturer 21% (20%), 

assistant professor 71% (21%), associate professor 4% (2%) and professor were 4% (0%).  More detail is 

provided in the tables contained within this report. 

Length of the Review Process 

Appointment proposals from academic units and faculties generally timely, and department chairs/schools 

directors have been very helpful in providing any additional information requested. Advance notice of 

proposals continues to be important to ensure speedy turnaround. Policy 76 specifies five working days 

for the review process. During the past year, UARC members were able to complete most reviews within 

five working days unless there was some missing information and discussions with the chair/director or 

dean were required.  

Administration 

Administrative information concerning UARC can be found at: https://uwaterloo.ca/secretariat/university-

appointments-review-committee 

Return to Agenda

Office of the Vice-President, Academic and Provost 

27 of 75



  Office of the Vice-President, 

Academic & Provost 
 

   

 

Documents include: Summary of Recruiting Efforts for UW Faculty positions form, which 

chairs/directors are required to complete; Overview of Chair’s Memo to the Dean; Conflict of Interest in 

Hiring Committees; UARC Presentation 2018; link to VPAP Forms and Templates. 

 

UARC Membership 

Arts: Anna Esselment (until May 2024), Julia Roberts (until May 2025) 

Engineering: Maria Anna Polak (until May 2025), Catherine Rosenberg (until May 2024) 

Environment: Prateep Nayak (until May 2024), Johanna Wandel (until May 2024) 

Health: Lora Giangregorio (until May 2025), Scott Leatherdale (until May 2025) 

Mathematics: Jason Bell (until May 2025), Pengfei Li (until May 2025) 

Science: Brian Dixon (until May 2024), Shaun Frape (until May 2025)  

Chair: Gerry Schneider (ENG) (until May 2025) 

Return to Agenda28 of 75



















Senate Graduate and Research Council 

Senate 1 

For Approval Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

Charmaine Dean 
Vice-President, Research & International 

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

Jeff Casello 
Associate Vice-President, Graduate Studies and Postdoctoral Affairs 

Presenter: 
Contact Info: 

Jeff Casello 
jcasello@uwaterloo.ca 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 10. Report - Senate Graduate & Research Council:
Graduate Studies Academic Calendar Revisions 

Recommendation/Motion: 

To approve revisions to the Grading scheme text in the Grades and grading section of the Graduate 
Studies Academic Calendar, as presented and effective Spring 2023. 

Summary: 

Senate Graduate & Research Council met on 6 March 2023 and agreed to forward this item to Senate for 
approval as part of the Regular agenda. 

Jurisdictional Information: 

This item is being submitted to Senate in accordance with Senate Bylaw 2; section 4.03(a): “Make 
recommendations to Senate with respect to the governance, direction and management of, or any changes 
in rules, regulations or policies for graduate studies and research in the University” 

Governance Path:  

Graduate Operations Committee review date (mm/dd/yy):09/20/22 

Return to Agenda37 of 75



 Senate Graduate and Research Council 

Senate   2 

Highlights/Rationale: 

The grading scheme text in the GSAC is being revised to provide greater clarity on what is considered a 

failed grade at the graduate level. The current language only speaks to the grading scale prior to 2001 and 

this revision clarifies current practice. There is no change to the grading scale as a result of this revision. 

This revision is being made in response to requests for clarification from departments/schools and in 

reviewing the language it was clear that there was ambiguity in the text. 
 

Documentation Provided: 

Program Revision Template - Appendix A. 

 

Return to Agenda38 of 75













This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda44 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   1 

 

For Approval  Open Session 

 

 

  

To: Senate 

  

Sponsor: 

Contact Information: 

Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor 

president@uwaterloo.ca  
 

Presenter: 

Contact Information: 

Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor 

president@uwaterloo.ca 

 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

  

Agenda Item Identification: 11a. Reports - Senate Executive Committee: 

Elections to Senate Committees & Councils and to Board of 

Governors 

 

 

Recommendation/Motion 1: 

To acclaim the membership of Senate committees and councils and the Board of Governors as provided 

on the list of nominees (see attached). 

 

Summary: 

The deans and the chair of the heads of the affiliated and federated institutions of Waterloo have been 

asked to recommend names of faculty member nominees, and the presidents of the Waterloo 

Undergraduate Student Association and Graduate Student Association have been asked to recommend 

names of student nominees to fill vacant seats on Senate committees and councils and the Board of 

Governors. At the meeting further nominations will be accepted from the floor. Where there is more than 

one name for a position, an electronic election will follow the meeting. 

 

Recommendation/Motion 2: 

To delegate approval to the Senate Executive Committee for any vacancies which exist. 

 

Summary: 

Senate Executive Committee’s approval of recommendations received after the 17 April 2023 Senate 

meeting will ensure that all committees have complete memberships prior to the beginning of the 

governance year on 1 May 2023. This approval will be completed by electronic ballot. 

 

 

Return to Agenda45 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   2 

 

 

Governance Path:  

Senate Executive Committee, 3 April 2023 

Senate, 17 April 2023 

 

Documentation Provided: 

Attachment 1: List of Nominees 

  

Return to Agenda46 of 75



Attachment 1: List of Nominees 

Page 3 of 6 

Senate Executive Committee - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – Joan Coutu 

Faculty of Engineering – Mary Robinson 

Faculty of Environment – Clarence Woudsma 

Faculty of Health – Luke Potwarka 

Faculty of Mathematics – Christiane Lemieux 

Faculty of Science – Laura Deakin 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

  Carol-Ann MacGregor 

 

Undergraduate Students - two 

 Vacancy 

Vacancy 

  

Graduate Student - one 

Vacancy 

 

Alumni - one 

 Vacancy 

 

Finance Committee - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – David Ha 

Faculty of Engineering – Marc Aucoin 

Faculty of Environment – Erin O’Connell 

Faculty of Health – Ellen MacEachen 

Faculty of Mathematics – Martin Karsten 

Faculty of Science – Stanley Woo 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

 Scott Kline 

 

Undergraduate Students - two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

Graduate Student - one 

 Vacancy 

 

Alumni - one 

 Vacancy 

 

 

Return to Agenda47 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Senate Long Range Planning Committee - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – Shana MacDonald 

Faculty of Engineering – Siva Sivoththaman 

Faculty of Environment – Rob Gorbet 

Faculty of Health – Narveen Jandu 

Faculty of Mathematics – Kevin Hare 

Faculty of Science – Trevor Charles 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

 Kristiina Montero 

 

Undergraduate Students - two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy  

 

Graduate Student - one 

 Vacancy 

 

Alumni - one 

 Vacancy 

 

Honorary Degrees Committee - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – Veronica Kitchen 

Faculty of Engineering – Nasser Abukhdeir 

Faculty of Environment – James Nugent 

Faculty of Health – Peter Hall 

Faculty of Mathematics – Changbao Wu 

Faculty of Science – Natalie Hutchings 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

 Troy Osborne 

 

Undergraduate Students - two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

Graduate Student - one 

Vacancy 

 

Alumni - one 

Vacancy 

Return to Agenda48 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

 

Graduate and Research Council - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2025 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

 Steven Bednarski 

 

Graduate Student - two 

Vacancy - Engineering 

Vacancy - Mathematics 

 

Senate Undergraduate Council - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2025 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – Vacancy 

Faculty of Health – Chris Vigna 

 

Faculty from affiliated and Federated Institutions of Waterloo – one 

 Alysia Kolentsis 

 

University Committee on Student Appeals  - Terms 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2025 

 

Faculty – One from each Faculty 

Faculty of Arts – Vacancy 

Faculty of Engineering – Vacancy 

Faculty of Environment – Erin O’Connell 

Faculty of Health – John Mielke 

Faculty of Mathematics – Carmen Bruni 

Faculty of Science – Rick Marta 

 

Staff – Two 

 Vacancy 

 Vacancy 

 

Undergraduate Students - two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

Graduate Student - two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

Board of Governors – Terms 1 May 2023 – 30 April 2025 

Return to Agenda49 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Faculty – three  

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

 

 

Undergraduate Students – Two 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

 

Graduate Student – One 

 Vacancy 

 

 

Return to Agenda50 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   1 

 

For Approval  Open Session 

 

 

  

To: Senate 

  

Sponsor: 

Contact Information: 

Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor 

president@uwaterloo.ca  
 

Presenter: 

Contact Information: 

Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor 

president@uwaterloo.ca 

 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

  

Agenda Item Identification: 11b. Reports – Senate Executive Committee: 

Delegation of Authority for the Roster of Graduands 

 

 

Recommendation/Motion: 

That Senate approve the delegation of its authority for the approval of the roster of graduands jointly to 

the chair and vice-chair of Senate, for convocation ceremonies scheduled in June 2023 and October 2023 

And that Senate directs that a full report on the complete roster of graduands be presented for information 

to the Senate meeting following the relevant convocation. 

 

Summary: 

It is customary practice for Senate to delegate its authority to approve the roster of graduands, considering 

that timing constraints and incongruences with the Senate meeting schedule do not allow for timely 

approval in line with operational requirements. In recent years, this delegation has been made to the 

Senate Executive Committee following a report and recommendation from the vice-president, academic 

and provost.  

The recommendation aims to provide even greater agility by empowering the Senate chair and vice-chair 

(the president and the provost, respectively) to handle said approval, to ensure adequate time is given to 

the Registrar’s Office and Community Relations and Events in planning convocation ceremonies. As a 

mechanism for accountability in approving the delegation of authority, Senate will require a report on the 

complete roster of graduands at the Senate meeting which follows the relevant convocation. 

It is proposed that this delegation of authority be provided on an annual basis, for the convocation 

ceremonies schedule in the upcoming twelve-month period. 

The recommended delegation of authority maintains Senate’s empowerments to “to confer degrees, 

diplomas and certificates or other awards in any and all branches of learning and in any subject taught in 

the University or its federated or affiliated colleges” as provided in section 22(g) of the University of 

Waterloo Act.  

Return to Agenda51 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   2 

 

Jurisdictional Information: 

Excerpt from University of Waterloo Act, 1972: 

POWERS OF THE SENATE 

22. The Senate has the power to establish the educational policies of the University and to make 

recommendations to the Board of Governors with respect to any matter relative to the operation 

of the University and without restricting the generality of the foregoing, this includes the power, 

 

… 

(g) to confer degrees, diplomas and certificates or other awards in any and all branches of 

learning and in any subject taught in the University or its federated or affiliated colleges; 

 

 

Governance Path:  

Senate Executive Committee, 3 April 2023 

Senate, 17 April 2023 

 

Previous Action Taken: 

Not applicable. 

 

Highlights: 

Not applicable.   

 

Next Steps: 

Not applicable. 

 

Documentation Provided: 

None  

Return to Agenda52 of 75



Senate Executive Committee 

Senate 1 

For Recommendation Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 
Contact Information: Office of the President 

Presenter: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 
Contact Info: Office of the President 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 11c. Reports - Senate Executive Committee: 
Amendment to Bylaw 4 – Ex-Officio Membership 

Recommendation/Motion: 

That Senate gives first reading to the amendments to Senate Bylaw 4 as presented in this report, with said 
amendments to effect: 

a. Removal of the Vice-President, Advancement, the Vice-President, University Relations, and the
Deputy Provost, Integrated Planning and Budgeting as ex-officio members of Senate

b. Addition of the Associate Vice-President, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion & Anti-Racism, the
Associate Vice-President, Indigenous Relations, and the Associate Vice-President, Academic
Operations as ex-officio members of Senate

Summary:  

The proposal to amend the ex-officio membership of Senate to reflecting requirements for Senate 
operations and considerations for equity, diversity, and inclusion in the membership of Senate, presented 
at the 27 March 2023 Senate meeting, was withdrawn following discussion. The proposal has been 
revised to address feedback from Senators.  

The University has made clear commitments toward positive action in the space of equity, diversity, 
inclusion and anti-racism (EDI-R), as well as having made a full commitment to decolonization, 
Indigenization and reconciliation. In the context of these commitments, and in line with the President’s 
Anti-Racism Taskforce (PART) recommendation 78, it is important that the membership of Senate be 
reflective of the community that it serves.  Currently there are five ex-officio members of Senate 
designated in Senate Bylaw 4 that are specific members of Executive Council.  It is proposed that the 
Associate Vice-President, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion & Anti-Racism, the Associate Vice-President, 
Indigenous Relations, and the Associate Vice-President, Academic Operations are added as ex-officio 
members of Senate, and that the Vice-President, Advancement, the Vice-President, University Relations, 
and the Deputy Provost, Integrated Planning and Budgeting are removed. 

Return to Agenda53 of 75



  
 Senate Executive Committee 
 

Senate   2 
 

With this amendment the University will fill specific gaps in representation on Senate in congruence with 
the University’s commitments. It is emphasized that those appointed under this provision are full-fledged 
members of Senate and will take a broad interest in all matters brought forward to that body, as is 
expected for all Senators. 

The proposed bylaw amendments as presented will effect no change to overall number of Senate 
members (92), and will keep intact the majority membership of faculty representatives on Senate as well 
as the present ratios of representation between the elected members of Senate from the Board of 
Governors, the undergraduate students, the graduate students and the alumni. 

 

Jurisdictional Information: 

Senate is empowered under section 22(o) of the University of Waterloo Act, 1972: 

“…to enact by-laws and regulations for the conduct of its affairs.” 

Section 18(a) of the University of Waterloo Act, 1972 describes the ex-officio membership of Senate, 
including article 9 of the section: 

“9. Such other ex-officio members as the Senate by by-law may, from time to time, designate.” 

Under Senate Bylaw 1, section 14 “Bylaws – general”: 

14.01 The passage of a new bylaw or amendment(s) to an existing bylaw is accomplished in two 
readings by Senate. At the first reading, such discussion as is deemed appropriate by Senate shall 
take place. At the second reading, further discussion may take place and the vote on the document 
shall be taken. The two readings shall take place at different, but not necessarily consecutive, 
meetings of Senate. 

14.02 No proposed bylaw or amendment(s) will be given reading unless it has been bound into or 
accompanies the agenda portfolio distributed in advance of the meeting. 

14.03 Any proposed bylaw or amendment(s) shall include the proposed wording of the bylaw or 
amendment(s), and where appropriate, a summary of the reasons for such bylaw or amendment(s). 

14.04 In order to be approved by Senate, any new bylaw or amendment(s) to bylaws must receive the 
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members of Senate present and voting at the meeting. 

 
 
Highlights: 

Recommended amendments to Senate Bylaw 4 are as follows: 
(strikethrough = deleted text, underline = new text) 

“… 

BE IT THEREFORE enacted as a bylaw of Senate of the University of Waterloo as follows: 

Return to Agenda54 of 75



  
 Senate Executive Committee 
 

Senate   3 
 

That the following be named as ex-officio members of Senate: 

a. The vice president, advancement. The associate vice-president, equity, diversity, inclusion & anti-
racism. 

b. The vice president, university relations. The associate vice-president, Indigenous relations. 

c. The vice-president, research and international. 

d. The associate vice-president, academic.  

e. The deputy provost, integrated planning and budgeting. The associate vice-president, academic 
operations. 

f. The president of the Faculty Association of the University of Waterloo. 

g. The president of the Federation of Students, University of Waterloo. 

h. The president of the Graduate Student Association - University of Waterloo. 

…” 

 

Previous Action Taken: 

A motion was brought forward to Senate to at the 27 March 2023 that Senate gives first reading to the 
amendments to Senate Bylaw 4 as presented. Following discussion, the motion was withdrawn. The 
proposed amendments have been revised to address feedback from Senators.  

 

Governance Path:  

Senate Executive Committee, 6 March 2023 

Senate, 27 March 2023 (withdrawn) 

Senate Executive Committee, 3 April 2023 (revised) 

Senate, 17 April 2023 (planned first reading) 

Senate, 16 June 2023 (planned second reading) 

 

Next Steps: 

Not applicable. 

Return to Agenda55 of 75



This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda56 of 75



Senate Executive Committee 

Senate 1 

For Approval Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 

Contact Information: Office of the President 

Presenter: Vivek Goel, President and Vice-Chancellor, and Chair of Senate 

Contact Info: Office of the President 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 12.  Amendment to Bylaw1 – Senate Meeting Schedule and

Format 

Recommendation/Motion: 

That Senate gives second and final reading to the amendments to the Senate By-Law 1 as presented in this 

report, with said amendments to effect: 

a. Reducing the normal number of general Senate meetings from 10 to 8 annually

b. Adding the provision for holding meetings electronically as well as in hybrid format (e.g. with

simultaneous in-person and electronic participation)

And that Senate endorse the following general guidelines for the annual schedule of meetings of Senate, 

for consideration by the chair of Senate in setting their approval of the annual schedule, subject to passage 

of the recommended bylaw amendments as presented in this report: 

a. Meetings approximately evenly spaced as follows: five (5) regular meetings of Senate between 1

Jan and 30 June and three (3) regular meetings of Senate between 1 September and 30 November

b. Toward promoting the ability of Senators to balance and fulfill their personal and family

responsibilities, schedule all meetings of Senate to begin at not earlier than 9:00 a.m. and to end

not later than 4:30 p.m.

And further that Senate approve the recommended amendments to the annual work plan (attached to this 

report) which is congruent with the reduced number of general Senate meetings to be held annually, 

subject to passage of the recommended bylaw amendments as presented in this report. 

Summary: 

Second reading of the proposal to amend the annual meeting schedule of Senate, and the timing of 

meetings of Senate. 

The final report of the Senate Governance Review was submitted to and endorsed by Senate at its June 

2022 meeting. This report addresses elements of recommendations 13 and 14 of the review. 

Return to Agenda57 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   2 
 

 

13. Revise the annual Senate meeting schedule to reflect the rationalized annual work plan.  

(Key considerations: ensuring transparency; enabling substantive strategic discussions; 

respecting essential academic practices and schedules, and key matters requiring approval or 

endorsement by Senate (e.g., budget); the potential for alignment with the Board of Governors’ 

cycle of meetings; in discussion with the Board, potential reconsideration of the start of the 

governance year to align with academic cycles; how meetings may be held (in-person, virtual, 

and hybrid). 

 

14. Ensure the timing of meetings in the day allows for more equitable participation. 

In recognition of the general pattern of cancelling the regular December meeting (often scheduled 15-20 

December) as well as the possibility of condensing regular Senate meetings in the January-June period, 

this report proposes a revised schedule with the aim to complete the same amount of regular business 

annually with fewer regular meetings. 

With respect to equitable participation in Senate meetings, the University recognizes the importance of 

Senators (and all members of our community) being able to balance and fulfill their personal and family 

responsibilities; going forward, the scheduling of Senate meetings will be limited to within the standard 

workday. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has adequately demonstrated that emergent modes of meeting (hybrid and/or 

fully via videoconference) are effective and here to stay. This report aims to codify this recognition for 

the ongoing benefits of Senate, senators, and the university community. 

 

Jurisdictional Information: 

Senate is empowered under section 22(o) of the University of Waterloo Act, 1972:  

“…to enact by-laws and regulations for the conduct of its affairs.” 

Per Senate Bylaw 1, section 14 “Bylaws – general”: 

14.01 The passage of a new bylaw or amendment(s) to an existing bylaw is accomplished in two 

readings by Senate. At the first reading, such discussion as is deemed appropriate by Senate shall 

take place. At the second reading, further discussion may take place and the vote on the document 

shall be taken. The two readings shall take place at different, but not necessarily consecutive, 

meetings of Senate. 

14.02 No proposed bylaw or amendment(s) will be given reading unless it has been bound into or 

accompanies the agenda portfolio distributed in advance of the meeting. 

14.03 Any proposed bylaw or amendment(s) shall include the proposed wording of the bylaw or 

amendment(s), and where appropriate, a summary of the reasons for such bylaw or amendment(s). 

14.04 In order to be approved by Senate, any new bylaw or amendment(s) to bylaws must receive the 

affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members of Senate present and voting at the meeting. 

 

Previous Action Taken: 

See Governance Path below. 

Return to Agenda58 of 75



  

 Senate Executive Committee 

Senate   3 
 

 

 

Highlights: 

Recommended amendments to Senate Bylaw 1 are as follows: 

(strikethrough = deleted text, underline = new text) 

3.01 General meetings  

Senate shall normally hold ten (10) eight (8) general meetings during each academic year.  

Notice of each meeting shall be communicated to the university community in such places  

and ways as may be designated from time to time by Senate.  

3.02 Place of meetings 

Meetings of Senate shall be held upon the campus of the university. 

Meetings of Senate may be held: 

a. in-person upon the campus of the university, or  

b. via telephone, electronic or other communications facilities that permit all participants  

to communicate with each other during the meeting, or  

c. in-person upon the campus of the university with simultaneous participation via 

telephone, electronic or other communications facilities that permit all participants to 

communicate with each other during the meeting.  

The specific place of any given meeting shall be at the sole approval of the chair of Senate and  

shall be communicated with the notice of agenda as in section 3.03 of this bylaw. 

 

Governance Path:  

Consultation with Senate Graduate & Research Council (13 February 2023), and Senate Undergraduate 

Council (14 February 2023) 

Senate Executive Committee, 6 March 2023 

Senate, 27 March 2023 (first reading) 

Senate, 17 April 2023 (planned second reading) 

 

Next Steps: 

Until Senate approval of the recommended bylaw amendments, the current 2022-23 Senate calendar of 

meetings will remain in effect. The implementation of the amended calendar is anticipated to commence 

with the 2023-24 academic year. 

 

Documentation Provided: 

• Draft Revised Senate Work Plan (revised for eight meets/year)   

 

Return to Agenda59 of 75







This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda62 of 75



Senate  
 

 

Senate Graduate and Research Council 
 
 

For Information  Open Session 

To: Senate  

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

Charmaine Dean 
Vice-President, Research & International 

 

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

Jeff Casello 
Associate Vice-President, Graduate Studies and Postdoctoral Affairs 

Presenter: 
Contact Info: 

Jeff Casello 
 jcasello@uwaterloo.ca 

 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023  

Agenda Item Identification: 13. Report – Senate Graduate & Research Council 
 

 

Summary: 
Senate Graduate & Research Council met on 6 March 2023 and agreed to forward the following items to 
Senate for information as part of the consent agenda. 

On behalf of Senate, the following items were approved: 

1. Graduate Awards 
Council approved the GradFlix Award - operating. 
 

2. Academic Program reviews 
Council approved new courses, course revisions, course inactivation’s, milestone revisions, and 
minor program revisions for: 
a. Final Assessment Report: Business, Entrepreneurship and Technology 
b. Final Assessment Report: Recreational and Leisure Studies 
c. Two-Year Progress Report: Chemical Engineering 

 
Jurisdictional Information: 
As provided for in Senate Bylaw 2, section 4.03, council is empowered to make approvals on behalf of 
Senate for a variety of operational matters: 

(f) On behalf of Senate, consider and approve all new graduate courses, the deletion of graduate 
courses, and proposed minor changes to existing graduate courses and programs, and provide Senate 
with a brief summary of council's deliberations in this regard. Any matter of controversy that might 
arise may be referred to Senate.  

(i) On behalf of Senate, consider and approve all new graduate scholarships and awards. Any matter 
of controversy that might arise may be referred to Senate. 

Return to Agenda63 of 75



This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda64 of 75



Senate   1 

 

Senate Undergraduate Council 
 
 
For Information  Open Session 
   
To: Senate 
  
Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

David DeVidi, Associate Vice-President, Academic 
david.devidi@uwaterloo.ca 
 

Presenter: 
Contact Information: 

David DeVidi, Associate Vice-President, Academic 
david.devidi@uwaterloo.ca 
 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 
  
Agenda Item Identification: 14. Report – Senate Undergraduate Council 
 
Summary: 
Senate Undergraduate Council met on March 7, 2023 and agreed to forward the following items to Senate 
for information as part of the consent agenda. 
 
On behalf of Senate, the following items were approved: 

 
Academic Program Reviews 
Council approved the following reports: 
 

• Final Assessment Report (FAR), Theatre and Performance 
 

• Two-Year Progress Report (PR), History 
 

• Two-Year Progress Report (PR), Liberal Studies 
 

 
Minor Plan & Curricular Modifications 
Council approved course changes for: 

a. Faculties of Environment and Science (geography & environmental management; interdisciplinary 
studies) 

 
Jurisdictional Information: 
As provided for in Senate Bylaw 2, section 5.03, council is empowered to make approvals on 
behalf of Senate for a variety of operational matters:  

(c)  On behalf of Senate, consider and approve all new undergraduate courses, the deletion of 
undergraduate courses, and proposed changes to existing undergraduate courses and minor 
changes to programs and/or plans, and provide Senate with a summary of council's deliberations 
in this regard. Any matter of controversy that might arise may be referred to Senate. 

(e)  Consider, study and review briefs on any aspect of undergraduate studies from members of the 
university. 

Return to Agenda65 of 75



This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda66 of 75



 Office of the Vice President, Research and International 

Senate   1 

 

For Discussion  Open Session 
   
To: Senate 
  

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

Charmaine Dean, Vice President Research and International 
vpri@uwaterloo.ca 
 

Presenter: 
Contact Information: 

Charmaine Dean, Vice President Research and International 
vpri@uwaterloo.ca 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 
  
Agenda Item Identification: 15a. Report – Vice-President, Research & International: 

Awards, Distinctions, Grants, Waterloo International 
Engagements 

 

Summary: 

Presenting the Vice-President, Research and International Report to Senate for April 2023. This report to 
Senate highlights successful research and international outputs and outcomes for the period February - 
March 2023 by the thematic areas as outlined in Waterloo’s Strategic Plan 2020-25.  

 

Documentation Provided: 

• Vice-President, Research and International Report to Senate for April 2023 

Return to Agenda67 of 75



1 
VPRI Senate Report: April 2023  

Vice-President, Research & International 
Report to Senate 

April 2023 
 

Introduction 
This report to Senate highlights successful research and international outputs and 
outcomes for the period February - March 2023 by the thematic areas as outlined in 
Waterloo’s Strategic Plan 2020-25. 

ADVANCING RESEARCH FOR GLOBAL IMPACT 
 
R1 - Research strengths to solve real-world problems 
 
Awards and Distinctions 

Sepehr Assadi (incoming Cheriton School of Computer Science) - Sloan 
Research Fellowship - Alfred P. Sloan Foundation, $75,000 (USD) 

• The Alfred P. Sloan Foundation supports research and education related to 
science, technology, and economics. Sepehr Assadi’s received this prestigious 
Fellowship for his research which focuses on theoretical foundations of big data 
analysis, more broadly exploring “algorithmic graph theory, communication 
complexity, online algorithms, and algorithmic game theory.” Assadi is one of 
125 early career researchers in the United States and Canada who received a 
Fellowship this year. Joining Waterloo in July 2023, he is currently an Assistant 
Professor in the Department of Computer Science at Rutgers University and a 
member of its Theory of Computing group. 

Shai Ben-David (Cheriton School of Computer Science) - Best Paper Award - 
34th International Conference on Algorithmic Learning Theory 

• Master’s candidate Niki Hasrati and Professor Shai Ben-David have received 
the best paper award at ALT 2023, the 34th International Conference on 
Algorithmic Learning Theory, for their paper “On Computable Online Learning.” 

Jennifer Clapp (School of Environment Resources and Sustainability) - 
Fellow - Swedish Royal Academy of Agriculture and Forestry 

• Fellows are the Academy’s most important resource, known for their outstanding 
insight and experience. The Royal Swedish Academy of Agriculture and Forestry 
works on issues of agriculture, horticulture, food, forest and forest products, 
fishing and aquaculture, the environment and natural resources. Jennifer Clapp’s 
research focuses on “food, agriculture and the environment” drawing on her 
“expertise on global food security politics and governance.” 

 

 

Return to Agenda68 of 75



2 
VPRI Senate Report: April 2023  

 

  
 

 

 
 

Sophie Spirkl (Combinatorics and Optimization) - Sloan Research 
Fellowship - Alfred P. Sloan Foundation, $75,000 (USD) 

• The Alfred P. Sloan Foundation supports research and education related to 
science, technology, and economics. Sophie Spirkl received this prestigious 
Fellowship for her research which focuses on “graphs with forbidden induced 
subgraphs” and “is widely regarded as one of the strongest graph theorists of her 
age in the world.” Spirkl is one of 125 early career researchers in the United 
States and Canada who received a Fellowship this year. 

Alex Wong (Systems Design Engineering) – Fellow – International Society 
for Design and Development in Education (ISDDE) 

• ISDDE Fellows represent excellence in design and development in education 
from the designer, design group leader, or funder perspectives. Alex Wong’s 
research focuses on “computational imaging, artificial intelligence, computer 
vision, and multimedia systems.” 

Funding Agencies and Non-Profit Sponsors 

Waterloo researchers were awarded 163 NSERC Discovery and related supplemental 
grants totalling $7,309,318.  

• NSERC Discovery Grants (Awarded 2023/24), 115 awards totalling 
$5,252,113 new funding for 5 years, with a success rate of 115 of 146 (or 79%) 
applications. 

• NSERC Discovery Grants - Subatomic Physics (Awarded 2023/24), 1 
award totalling $355,000 ($71,000 each year over 5 years). 

• NSERC Discovery Grants – Northern Research Supplements Program 
(Awarded 2023/24), for ongoing research, 5 awards totalling $71,000. 

• NSERC Research Tools & Instruments Grants (Awarded 2022/23), 10 
awards totalling $1,231,205, with a success rate of 10 of 24 (or 42%) 
applications. 

• NSERC Discovery Launch Supplement (Awarded 2023/24), 32 Awardees, 
totalling $400,000. 

Return to Agenda69 of 75



3 
VPRI Senate Report: April 2023  

Research Partnerships 

NSERC Alliance 

Waterloo received 3 awards totaling $1,302,258 from NSERC and $2,269,982 in 
partnership contributions. 

• Fatma Gzara (Management Science), “Data analytics for robust crew 
pairing” $65,218 over 2 years, +$65,218 cash and $100,100 in-kind from 
partner Navblue.  

• Philippe Van Cappellen (Earth & Environment Sciences), "CLAWAVE – 
Chemical load assessments for watersheds: automation and visualization 
experience,” $937,040 over 4 years, +$1,669,764 in-kind from partner 
Environment and Climate Change Canada.  

• Mihaela Vlasea (Mechanical & Mechatronics), “Sustainable materials and 
additive manufacturing processes for the automotive sector,” $300,000 over 3 
years, +$150,000 cash and $285,000 in-kind from partners RioTinto, Dana 
Canada Corporation, and Nanogrande. 

NSERC Alliance-Mitacs Accelerate Grants  

Joint NSERC Alliance-Mitacs Accelerate grants support projects of varying scale and 
complexity, from short-term smaller projects involving one researcher to long-term 
projects involving researchers across several universities, and from one-on-one 
collaborations with a single partner organization directly involved in the research to 
projects involving many partner organizations across multiple sectors. 

• XiaoYu Wu (Mechanical and Mechatronics Engineering), “Analyzing 
the potential of hydrogen fuel cell electric vehicles as distributed energy storage 
or generators to decarbonize transportation and power sectors,” $40,000 over 2 
years, +$20,000 cash from Mitacs, +$20,000 cash and $5,700 in-kind from 
partner The Transition Accelerator. 

NSERC Alliance Missions - Anthropogenic greenhouse gas research 

Alliance Missions grants are a unique opportunity aimed at addressing critical science 
and technology challenges that can play a pivotal role in Canada’s economy. Waterloo 
received 6 awards totaling $6,820,956 from NSERC, and $2,234,542 from 
partnership contributions. 

• Kyle Daun (Mechanical & Mechatronics Engineering), “Development of 
hyperspectral imaging platforms for quantifying methane emissions from 
managed wetlands, landfills, and the upstream oil and gas industry,” $941,000 
over 3 years, +$270,900 in-kind from partners Ducks Unlimited Canada; 

Return to Agenda70 of 75



4 
VPRI Senate Report: April 2023  

Environment and Climate Change Canada; Petroleum Technology Alliance 
Canada; GFL Environmental Inc. 

• Hamid Jahed (Mechanical and Mechatronics Engineering), 
“Remanufacturing - A manufacturing paradigm shift for deep decarbonization in 
a sustainable economy,” $1,495,538 over 3 years, +$18,462 cash and 
$565,240 in-kind from partner Siemens Canada Limited; Natural Resources 
Canada; CenterLine (Windsor) Ltd.; FCA Canada Inc. 

• Yuri Leonenko (Earth and Environmental Science), “Carbon Capture by 
Boreal Afforestation: feasibility for Canada's net-zero emission goals” 
$1,500,000 over 3 years, +$366,000 in-kind from partner Technologies 
aérospatiales inc. 

• Mehrdad Pirnia (Management Sciences), “Sustainable Aviation for 
Reducing Anthropogenic Greenhouse Gas Emission in Canadian Skies” 
$885,078 over 3 years, +$219,298 in-kind from partner Waterloo Wellington 
Flight Centre. 

• Mahla Poudineh (Electrical & Computer Engineering), “An integrated 
microfluidic, metal oxide semiconductor gas sensor combined with machine 
learning optimization for multiplexed greenhouse gas detection,” $650,800 
over 3 years, +$30,000 cash and $58,000 in-kind from partners Pro-Flange 
Ltd. 

• Philippe Van Cappellen (Earth & Environmental Sciences), “Adaptive 
management of green stormwater infrastructure to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions from urban watersheds,” $1,348,540 over 3 years, +$706,642 in-
kind from partner Environment and Climate Change Canada; Toronto & Region 
Conservation Authority; Ontario Clean Water Agency; City of Kitchener; Crozier: 
Consulting Engineers; Muslim Families. 

NSERC Alliance Quantum 

Alliance Quantum grants aim to reinforce, coordinate and scale up Canada's domestic 
research capabilities in quantum science and technology through partnerships between 
university researchers and organizations from the private, public or not-for-profit 
sectors. Waterloo received the following one award: 

• Na Young Kim (Electrical & Computer Engineering, “Quantum Rydberg 
Exciton Radars (REX-R),” $1,028,700 over 5 years, +$100,000 cash from 
partner Defence R&D Canada. 

 

 

Return to Agenda71 of 75



5 
VPRI Senate Report: April 2023  

Waterloo International Agreements 

Between February 28, 2023 and March 31, 2023, Waterloo International facilitated 
the signing of the following international agreement: 

• Tilburg University, Netherlands – Student exchange. 
o Now a university-wide agreement since 2014, and renewed in March 2023. 

This agreement was first signed in 1999 involving the Faculty of Arts only, 
and expanded to include the Faculty of Applied Health Sciences in 2004. 

Waterloo International Engagement Activities 

Between February 28, 2023, and March 31, 2023, Waterloo International organized, 
executed or participated in the follow key activities: 
 

• Asia-Pacific Association for International Education Conference, 
Bangkok, Thailand (13-17 March 2023).   
 

• Visit of the Italian Ambassador to Canada, His Excellency, Andrea 
Ferrari, to the Waterloo campus. 
 

• Presidential trip to India (13-17 March 2023). 
 

• AVP International trip to India and Vietnam (each 20-24 March 2023).   
o These trips were led, respectively, by Ian Rowlands, Associate Vice-

President, International; and Amelia Burton, Associate Director, 
International Relations.   

Return to Agenda72 of 75



Office of the Vice-President, Academic and Provost 

Senate 1 

For Information Open Session 

To: Senate 

Sponsor: 
Contact Information: 

James W.E. Rush, Vice-President, Academic and Provost 
provost@uwaterloo.ca 

Presenter: 
Contact Information: 

James W.E. Rush, Vice-President, Academic and Provost 
provost@uwaterloo.ca 

Date of Meeting: April 17, 2023 

Agenda Item Identification: 16. Report of the Provost – Faculty Appointments, Leaves

Summary: 

The Faculty Reports for Senators’ information regarding the variety of appointments, reappointments, 
special appointments, leaves, and other matters of interest about individuals in the Faculties are available 
at the Senate agenda page1. 

1 https://uwaterloo.ca/secretariat/sites/default/files/uploads/documents/reports-all-faculty-abril-2023.pdf 

Return to Agenda73 of 75



This page intentionally left blank. 

Return to Agenda74 of 75




